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How Florida judges devised $9.1 million sanction against tobacco plaintiffs' lawyers
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(Reuters) - Four federal judges in Jacksonville, Florida – U.S. District Judges Timothy Corrigan, Roy Dalton, Marcia
Howard and William Young – ruled Wednesday in In re: Engle Cases that plaintiffs lawyers Norwood Wilner of The
Wilner Firm and Charlie Farah of Farah & Farah owe $9.1 million as sanction for filing and prolonging unfounded
tobacco cases. The court's 148-page ruling reflects a years-long inquiry by the court and the U.S. attorney's office, acting
as a special master, into the thousands of cases Wilner and Farah filed after the Florida Supreme Court said individual
smokers could rely on evidence from an overturned class action holding tobacco companies liable for personal injuries.

It is a dense and dispiriting recitation of the plaintiffs' lawyers' initial rush to file suits; repeated failures to ascertain the
viability of their cases; emphatic resistance to court efforts to contact their purported clients, even after the emergence
of undeniable evidence of their errors; and, ultimately, misrepresentations to the judges overseeing the suits and the
investigation. The judges found Wilner and Farah committed hundreds of violations of both Rule 11 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure and the federal prohibition on vexatious litigation.

The court also determined that Wilner and Farah had to pay for their misconduct. "Non-monetary sanctions alone, such
as a reprimand, will not suffice," the judges wrote, noting that Wilner, in particular, had not shown contrition and did
not seem to understand that he had deviated from professional standards and wasted vast amounts of scarce court time.
"The court cannot restore lost time to those parties whose cases were delayed while the court sorted through the mess
of Wilner's and Farah's creation," the opinion said. "But the court can restore the public fisc and deter similar abuses of
the court system by requiring Wilner and Farah to reimburse the taxpayer for the waste of judicial resources."

So how did the judges pin a number to the ethical violations? Keep in mind that the court is holding in escrow about
$45 million from a global settlement of personal injury tobacco suits filed in federal court in Florida. That money is
supposed to be divided among Wilner, Farah and two other firms that entered the litigation years after it was launched,
Lieff Cabraser Heimann & Bernstein and Motley Rice. The four firms, according to Wednesday's opinion, are litigating
in state court in Florida about how to split the money.

But the Jacksonville federal judges began to assess sanctions against Wilner and Farah based on the premise that the
two Florida lawyers would be able to pay out of the escrow funds. (The judges did not impose any sanctions on Lieff
Cabraser and Motley Rice, which, they said, "acted reasonably once they became involved in the litigation. Even if they
made some mistakes, their conduct never rose to the level of bad faith or recklessness that is necessary for the imposition
of sanctions.")

The Jacksonville U.S. attorney recommended in 2016 that Wilner and Farah be required to disgorge all of their fees from
the tobacco litigation in federal court. The judges decided that was too harsh a sanction because not all of the lawyers'
thousands of tobacco cases were frivolous.

Instead, the court came up with a detailed accounting of the sanctionable cases. Nearly 600 of the personal injury suits
Wilner and Farah filed were on behalf of deceased plaintiffs. Those cases were all deemed sanctionable under Rule 11
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and 28 U.S.C. § 1927. More than 570 purported plaintiffs never responded to repeated attempts by the court to contact
them. The judges said Wilner and Farah had unreasonably maintained those suits. Another 15 cases were not authorized
by plaintiffs – including one supposed plaintiff who was coincidentally called for jury duty in another tobacco personal
injury case and said she had years ago told plaintiffs' lawyers she didn't want to sue.

Wilner and Farah filed suits for 28 plaintiffs whose cases had been previously adjudicated, 36 people who never lived in
Florida and 18 non-smokers. Allowing for overlap, the judges came up with a total of 1,250 frivolous cases.

The judges then determined the average cost of a tobacco personal injury case based on studies of the litigation. Adjusted
for inflation, that figure came out to $6,983.42 per case. So the value of judicial resources wasted by Wilner and Farah,
according to the court, was $8.7 million – and under the U.S. Supreme Court's 2016 decision in Goodyear v. Haeger
(137 S. Ct. at 1187-88), the plaintiffs' lawyers can be held liable for all of it.

And then there was the cost of the U.S. attorney's work as special master. That came to $435,129.12. In total, the judges
said, Wilner's and Farah's conduct cost $9,164,404.12 in judicial and investigatory resources. So that was the sanction
the court imposed.

It's a big number, the judges acknowledged – but no less than what Wilner and Farah deserve, considering "the
breathtaking scale" of their wrongdoing. "To impose a lesser sanction only because the end figure seems too high
perversely would give counsel a break precisely because they advocated such a vast number of frivolous lawsuits," the
judges said. "That cannot be. Such a monetary sanction is necessary to compensate the public and to deter other lawyers
from engaging in similarly outrageous conduct in the future."

The judges also referred Wilner and Farah to the Florida bar for disciplinary action. Wilner had previously been cleared
but the court said the record is now more complete than it had been in the previous bar investigation.

A receptionist at Wilner's firm said he was in trial and not available to comment on the sanctions decision. She also said
no one else at the firm could comment. Farah did not respond to my phone message.
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